Pieve di Caminino Historic Resort — A short Story

Caminino used to be an Etruscan and Roman settlement: here they used to
work the copper coming out of the mines in Roccatederighi’s mountains.

An antique legend tells that the Catholic Roman Soldier Feriolo was killed
in loco Caminino by the Roman archers, while they were persecuting all the
Cristians. In the spot where the archers killled him, a miracle happened: a source
of water came out from the stones, and starting from then many pilgrims visited
Caminino. According to this legend, at the end of X century, the Bishop of Roselle
founded here a small prioratus. The most antique document mentioning
“Caminino” is dated back to 1075: the full name was Pieve di San Feriolo a
Caminino (a “Pieve” is a country Cathedral) . -

The small Monastery reached soon a very important powerful position in the diocesis of
Grosseto — Roselle: many landlords were giving money or estate donations to the church of Caminino,
which little by little growed up as small town with its own library, school, weekly market and a large
olive grove farmland: the monks were extra virgin olive oil experts. Success went on till XI1I century:
during this period many battles and sieges were fighted around the fortresses of Montemassi,
Roccatederighi and Sassoforte, therefore the scared monks and priests moved inside the safe walls of
Montemassi castle: the church of Caminino was little by little abandoned, and the monastery became
just a small farmers’ hamlet, still owned by the Bishop of Grosseto-Roselle.

In XVII century a new spritual age began for Caminino: S. Luca del Teglia, mentioned as
Romito Santo, with the permission of the Bishop founded in Caminino an Agostinian hermitage,
restoring the antique church and rebuilding the roof with the tiles, the trusses and the main oak beams
that we can admire nowadays.

At the end of XVII century the Romito Santo was killed by some bandits and this bloody event
marked the end of the religious life in Caminino: in 1732, after the last Agostinian monk died, all the
hamlet was sold by the Bishop to Tempesti family. From 1732 to 1872 the antique settlement was used
as a deposit, and many of the old building were destroyed in order to sell back the stones.

Finally, in 1872, Antonio Giuseppe Marrucchi, former personal consultant of the Granduke of
Tuscany, retired and bought the former monastery together with the all the land around it. He restored
all the antique buildings, obtaining so a marvellous private town where to settle colonists for managing
the farmland. He realised that the presence of wild olive trees around the estate was a sign: the monks
used to produce a fine extra vergin olive oil, therefore he planted a large new olive grove: most of the
picturesque olive trees we can admire nowadays are more than 100 year old.

In the “60ies little by little the colonists abandoned the farmland to live in the cities. Pieve di
Caminino was abandoned by all its inhabitants and went on just as a farm. The new heirs of the
Marrucchi, the Marrucchi Locatelli family, in 1983 started the renovation of all the buildings, a 15 year
lasting process: the antique hamlet of Caminino was converted into a small romantic resort: The Pieve
di Caminino Historic Resort.

The former church is today the reception hall of the resort, and it hosts a permanent exposition
of the Locatellis, a 3 generetion family of famous artists: Romualdo Locatelli was one of the portraiter
of the Italian Royal family, while Raffaello Locatelli was the personal portraiter of Pope Giovanni
XXIII.
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